
Democratic Services Section
Chief Executive’s Department
Belfast City Council
City Hall
Belfast 
BT1 5GS

5th January, 2017

MEETING OF CITY GROWTH AND REGENERATION COMMITTEE*
(*Please note that all Members of the Planning Committee are invited to attend Item 3a – 
Interactive 3D City Model)

Dear Alderman/Councillor,

The above-named Committee will meet in the Lavery Room - City Hall on Wednesday, 
11th January, 2017 at 5.15 pm, for the transaction of the business noted below.

You are requested to attend.

Yours faithfully,

SUZANNE WYLIE

Chief Executive

AGENDA:

1. Routine Matters  

(a) Apologies  

(b) Minutes  

(c) Declarations of Interest  

2. Presentation  

(a) Cyber Security  

3. Restricted Items  

(a) Interactive 3D City Model  (Pages 1 - 14)

(b) Potential Land Acquisition  (Pages 15 - 22)

(c) Belfast Zoo Report  (Pages 23 - 28)

4. Request to Present to Committee  



- 2 -
(a) Belfast City Centre Management  (Pages 29 - 32)

5. Positioning Belfast to compete  

(a) Routes Conference 2017  (Pages 33 - 36)

6. Growing Businesses and the Economy  

(a) Support for Small and Medium Sized Enterprises  

7. Finance, Procurement and Performance  

(a) Corporate Risk Update  (Pages 37 - 46)



































CITY GROWTH AND REGENERATION COMMITTEE

Subject: Belfast City Centre Management: request to present to Committee

Date: 11 January 2017

Reporting Officer: Donal Durkan, Director of Development

Contact Officer: Lisa Toland, Head of Economic Initiatives and International 
Development

Is this report restricted? Yes No

Is the decision eligible for Call-in?                                                  Yes No

1.0 Purpose of Report 

1.1 The purpose of the report is to request Committee approval to invite representatives from 

Belfast City Centre Management (BCCM) to attend the March 2017 meeting of the 

Committee to set out their business plan and request for financial support from the Council 

in the coming financial year.

2.0 Recommendations

2.1 The Committee is asked to; 

 Agree to a presentation from BCCM at the March 2017 meeting of the City Growth and 

Regeneration Committee.

3.0 Main report

3.1 Members will be aware that Belfast City Centre Management was established as a public-

private partnership to support the development of the city centre.

X 

X



3.2

3.3

3.4

3.5

3.6

The organisation carries out a range of services on behalf of its funders.  The key public 

sector funders are Belfast City Council and Department for Communities.  The private 

sector investment comes through a Service Level Agreement (SLA) with the Belfast 

Chamber of Trade and Commerce (BCTC) and the organisation also receives income from 

the Belfast One BID to cover the costs of some overheads associated with hosting the 

organisation in the offices of BCCM.

The Council is represented on BCCM Board by Councillors Craig and Dudgeon.  There are 

also two officers sitting as Advisors to the Board, representing the Development and City 

and Neighbourhood Services Department.

BCCM played an important support role in establishing the Belfast One Business 

Improvement District (BID).  It is also undertaking the development work on another BID 

which will cover the main office area around the City’s Linen Quarter.  The ballot for this 

BID is likely to take place in Autumn 2017.

BCCM has undergone some changes to its business model since the introduction of the 

two BIDS in Belfast One and Cathedral Quarter in the course of the last year.  The 

development work on a third BID and its potential introduction from the end of 2017 will 

mean further changes to the role of the organisation in supporting city centre development.  

The establishment of the City Centre Development Team within the Council along with an 

enhanced focus on the City Centre as a retail, cultural and business hub for the region 

signifies a change in focus for the Council’s activities in this area.  Taking account of all of 

these changes in the operating context, it is important to consider how BCCM can play a 

useful support role for the Council going forward.  The Council will also engage with DfC, 

as the other principal public funder, to consider the future funding implications of the 

organisation and its delivery role in the context of the changing support structures for the 

City Centre and the changing operating environment.

In order to understand the current work of the organisation and to set out their plans for 

activity in the coming financial year – including a request for funding from the Council – it is 

proposed that representatives from BCCM are invited to attend the March 2017 meeting of 

the City Growth and Regeneration Committee.



3.7

3.8

Financial and resource implications

In the current financial year, Belfast City Council’s funding to BCCM is £190,000.  An 

allocation of £190,000 has been included within the Departmental estimates for the 

financial year 2017/18.

Equality or good relations implications

No specific equality or good relations implications.

4.0 Appendices – Documents Attached
None





CITY GROWTH AND REGENERATION COMMITTEE

Subject: Routes Europe Conference 2017

Date: 11 January 2017

Reporting Officer: Donal Durkan, Director of Development

Contact Officer: Maggie McNally, Strategic Programme Manager

Is this report restricted? Yes No

Is the decision eligible for Call-in?                                                  Yes No

1.0 Purpose of Report 

1.1 The purpose of this report is to update Members on the upcoming business tourism event 

taking place in Belfast in April 2017, the annual Routes Europe Conference.   

2.0 Recommendations

2.1 The Committee is asked to:
 Note the update on the Routes Europe Conference which will take place in Belfast for 

the first time on 23-25 April 2017.

3.0 Main report

3.1

3.2

In October 2016, the Council agreed to commit £100,000 to support the costs of hosting 

the 2017 Routes Europe event at Belfast Waterfront.  Routes Europe have indicated that 

the benefits to a city hosting the event in terms of positive PR coverage, potential new airline 

routes announcements and additional leisure/business tourism visitors, could be in the 

region of more than £50million.  This is based on feedback and measurement of Routes 

Conferences that have been held in other cities. 

The bid for Belfast involves financial contributions from a range of partners.  These include:  

X

X



3.3

3.4

3.5

3.6

 Approximately £348,000 agreed by Invest NI. (In addition, they have spent £137,000 

securing the Routes Conference for Belfast City)

 Tourism Ireland (TIL) - £20,000  

 Tourism NI (TNI) - £165,000 

 Visit Belfast - £20,000

 BWUH Ltd - £10,000

 Local airports - approximately £100,000 each 

 In addition to these funding contributions, all partners are also making additional 

contributions in-kind in order to ensure the success of the event.  

Routes Europe is a particularly attractive Conference due to the economic impact that it will 

have, particularly on potential new air routes.  It is the largest regional gathering for all 

aviation-based companies operating in Europe.  This major international event brings 

together decision makers from airlines, airports and tourism authorities to negotiate and 

build relationships that will shape the world’s future air route networks. Routes events 

occupy a unique position, both in the field of aviation and as an economic development 

catalyst. Air transport is one of the means of regional economic development and Routes 

delivers to the event – and the host city – the key decision makers within the industry.  

Routes Europe is an annual event which takes place in major European cities over a three 

day period.  Following the successful bid by Belfast, the Routes Europe 2017 event will take 

place in the city on 23-25 April 2017. The delegates are considered to be ‘guests’ of Routes 

and therefore of the host city, which will provide Belfast with a rare opportunity to bring 

influential decision makers into the city, make them welcome, build a relationship with them 

and seek future partnerships.

It is estimated that the event will attract around 1,000 delegates representing more than 

100 global airlines, airports and tourism promotion agencies.  In addition to the significant 

financial impact of the delegate spend – estimated at around £1.3million – the event 

presents an excellent opportunity to demonstrate the economic and tourism potential of the 

city of Belfast to a range of decision-makers, focusing on the key messaging identified within 

the emerging city narrative whilst showcasing all that is on offer for airlines, tourists, 

businesses and inward investors. It also provides the City with an opportunity to positively 

change perceptions about our airports and Belfast as a destination.  There is a significant 



3.7

3.8

3.9

3.10

promotional campaign underway for the event at present, and one of the key recent 

promotional opportunities has been at the World Routes conference which took place in 

Chengdu, China in September 2016.

 

The main Conference and showcase will take place in the Belfast Waterfront while a 

welcome reception will be held in Belfast City Hall and a gala networking event in Titanic 

Belfast.  Organisers and the local team are working closely together on a programme of 

supporting events across the city. This “Team Belfast” approach has ensured joined-up 

working with all partners.  Research shows that the host city has a significant impact on 

delegates’ overall satisfaction and the Belfast Waterfront will be able to showcase that it 

can deliver well-organised meetings and a high standard of events in a luxurious, state of 

the art, riverside location presenting a positive impression of the city.

In addition to the main conference programme, the local planning group is currently looking 

at animating the city during the event.  This may include banners as well as some cultural 

animation.  Tourism NI is also providing four delegate tours and these will be offered as 

part of a side programme to the main conference.  

The Routes Europe Conference has the potential to accelerate air route development.  

Previous host cities report that they have secured agreement on up to six new routes after 

holding the event as well as increases in airline operations over subsequent years. 

Members will be aware that air route connectivity has been identified as one of the most 

critical elements required to support future tourism and business growth. The Integrated 

Tourism Strategy noted that limitations in air route connections to key business destinations 

was one of the most significant challenges to the ambition of doubling the value of tourism.  

Routes Europe helps support a fundamental part of the business tourism strategy – 

business and leisure tourism is of key importance in growing the tourism industry and 

doubling tourism spend by 2020.

The Northern Ireland Executive has invested in a range of incentives to secure key routes 

from the region’s airports.  Despite this, there are opportunities for further development – 

particularly to a number of key European business hubs – and it is considered that this 

event will be a critical part of work to secure these new routes.  Longer-term benefits will 

also come from the extensive international PR coverage for Belfast that the Conference will 

generate and this can be used to profile the city as an attractive leisure and business 

tourism destination and to carry some of the key messages around the business and 



3.11

3.12

3.13

3.14

investment opportunities in the city.  

To ensure the successful delivery of the event and ensure that the City realises the full 

benefits of hosting such a Conference three working groups have been set up to co-ordinate 

the event:

 Marketing/Communications group

Met 7 November. Working group with Event-ful Event Management company and all 

stakeholders to get partners up to speed on all aspects of event. 

 Logistics group

Met 14 November. Working group with Invest NI, Visit Belfast, Event-ful Event 

Management, Tourism NI, Belfast International Airport, Belfast City Airport and Belfast 

Waterfront specifically relating to logistics, airport welcome, coach tendering and 

delegate transport and scheduling. 

 Events group

Met 15 November. Working group with Invest NI, Visit Belfast, Event-ful Event 

Management, Tourism NI and Belfast City Council specifically relating to Welcome 

reception, networking event and animating the city

 

These groups will continue to meet in the run-up to the event in order to ensure that all 

planning details for the event are taken care of and that the City makes the most of this 

opportunity to showcase Belfast as a successful business and tourism destination.  A further 

progress report on all of this work will be brought to Committee prior to the April 2017 event.

Financial and Resource Implications

The £100,000 funding allocation has already been approved by the Committee and is built 

into the 2016/17 budget and Q2 year end forecast.

Equality or Good Relations Implications

No specific equality or good relations implications.  

4.0 Appendices – Documents Attached

None 



1

CITY GROWTH AND REGENERATION COMMITTEE

Subject:
Identifying and managing risk in the City Centre Regeneration & 

Investment Strategy (CCRIS)

Date: 11 January 2017

Reporting Officer: Nuala Gallagher, Director of City Centre Regeneration

Contact Officer: Christopher McCracken, Programme Manager 

Is this report restricted? Yes No

Is the decision eligible for Call-in?                                                  Yes No

1.0
Purpose of Report

1.1

1.2

This report identifies risks to the City Centre Regeneration and Investment Strategy (CCRIS). 

The purpose is to: 

 brief Committee members about these risks;

 set out the actions required to manage these; and

 identify any specific roles or actions required by Committee

Members are asked to note that this report highlights programme level risks. Within the 

programme individual projects will also have specific risks and issues, which will require 

separate action plans. Although project SRO’s are accountable for risks, the City Centre Board 

will also monitor “red” project risks on a monthly basis to ensure an adequate level of control 

across the programme.

2.0 Recommendations

2.1 The Committee is asked to;

 Note key risks that could impact on the delivery of CCRIS; the controls that have recently 

been put in place; and the additional risk actions that are required. The programme is 

currently rated as high, but the target is to lower this risk to significant following the delivery 

x

x



2

3.0 Main Report

3.1

3.2

3.3

3.4

Background

In August 2016 Chief Officers undertook a comprehensive risk review. Sixteen corporate risks were 

identified, including “Fail to deliver the CCRIS” (see Appendix 1 for the corporate risk map).

Risk Causes 

There are both internal and external factors that could impact the delivery of the programme. These 

include:

a) Market failure / economic downturn

b) Lack of buy-in / financial support from key external stakeholders

c) Lack of clear land use policy

d) Insufficient or ineffective use of resources

e) Failure to comply with legal regulations e.g. State Aid

f) Reputational damage due to lack of good governance

g) Failure to properly define or measure outcomes.

Risk Controls

A number of controls are currently in place to manage these risks including an approved strategy 

that sets out a clear direction of travel; a robust governance structure, including a monthly 

programme Board chaired by CX; and legal / policy processes around procurement and economic 

appraisals.

There are also a number of sources of assurance, including economic data, external stakeholder 

groups / Project Boards; and programme and project plans with milestones and financial 

assessments.

3.5

Proposal

To manage the risks that have been identified, and to lower the overall CCRIS risk rating from high 

to significant, the following risk actions are proposed. 

of the action plan and;

 Note that the risk management plan will be implemented over the next four months, and an 

update on delivery will be brought to Committee in May 2017.



3

Key Actions to be taken Action Owner Action Updater Implementation 

Date

Action title: City Centre Investment Fund

(risk causes A & D)

Action 

description:

Scope and analyse potential 

areas of market failure, and 

structure the city centre 

investment fund to facilitate 

effective interventions.

Ronan Cregan / 

Nuala Gallagher

TBC 31 March 2017

Action title: Governance / Stakeholder 

Engagement (risk cause B)

Action 

description:

Risk / issue log collated and 

maintained for City Centre 

Programme Board; Advisory 

Board; and at Project Level.

Nuala Gallagher Chris 

McCracken

31 March 2017

Action title: Planning Protocol 

(risk causes B & C)

Action 

description:

Establish and agree a protocol 

with the Council’s Planning 

Service for consultation on City 

Centre planning applications 

(including pre-application 

discussions)

Nuala Gallagher Chris 

McCracken

31 March 2017

Action title: Development of City Centre 

Team (risk cause D)

Action 

description:

Establish permanent team to 

deliver strategy (with interim 

solution of additional 

consultancy support)

Nuala Gallagher Chris 

McCracken

31 March 2017



4

Action title: Training & Guidance 

(risk cause E)

Action 

description:

Appropriate training to be 

implemented at Board and 

team levels.

Qualified guidance (e.g. State 

Aid) to be arranged.

Nuala Gallagher 

Chris 

McCracken

31 March 2017

Action title: Review and Re-enforce Codes 

of Conduct / Guidance for 

Officers (risk cause F)

Action 

description:

Review and Re-enforce Codes of 

Conduct / Guidance for Officers 

involved in consultation / 

decision making  relating to 

Regeneration and Investment 

Strategy and related 

interventions

Jill Minne TBC 31 March 2017

Outcomes (risk cause G)Action title:

Need to develop a means of 

measuring the success of the 

programme

(linked to wider Belfast Agenda)

Nuala Gallagher Chris 

McCracken

31 March 2017

3.6

3.7

Finance and Resource Implications 

The risk action plan will be led by the City Centre Development Team, and managed from within 

existing resources.

Additional consultancy support will be required to scope market failure and to determine outcomes, 

including potential assessment of economic benefits. These costs will be met from within the 

existing City Centre Development budgets.



5

3.8

Equality and Good Relations Implications

None identified.

4.0 Appendices - Documents Attached

Appendix 1 – Corporate Risk Map, Current Risk Assessment





Appendix 1

Corporate Risk Register

1



Corporate Risk Map –

Current Risk Assessment

2



Risk Assessment 

Guidance

IMPACT
1.

Insignificant

2.

Minor

3.

Moderate

4.

Major

5.

Severe

Objectives / 

Service Delivery

The risk will not

substantively impede the

achievement of the

objective.

Some impact on objectives

resulting in slight but

redeemable deviation.

The risk will cause some

elements of the objective to

be delayed or not be

achieved.

The risk will cause several

elements of the objective to

be delayed or not achieved.

The risk will cause the

objective to not be

achieved

Financial Minimal financial

implications

Minor financial implications

(e.g. within agreed year-end

budget variance tolerance

levels for Departments of 2%

underspend and 0.5%

overspend)

Moderate financial

implications (e.g. within

agreed in-year budget

variance tolerance levels of

2% underspend and 1%

overspend)

Major financial implications

(e.g. outside the agreed

budget variance tolerance

levels by up to 5%)

Severe financial

implications

(e.g. outside the agreed

budget variance tolerance

levels by more than 5%)

H&S Minimal injury requiring

no/minimal intervention;

informal investigation;

very low level impact on

staffing / service delivery

impact; minimal financial

loss; potential for rumours

/ public concern

Minor injury / illness requiring

medical intervention and little

time off; low level impact on

staffing / service delivery; risk

of short term loss of public

confidence; small financial loss

Moderate injury requiring

medical intervention and

time off; formal complaint

and investigation likely;

moderate impact on staff /

service delivery; local public

/ media interest; moderate

financial loss

Major injury leading to

longer term incapacity /

disability; multiple

complaints / external

agency investigation; major

impact on staffing and

service delivery; national

public / media interest;

major financial loss

Major injuries leading to

death and irreversible

health effects; high profile

investigation and

enforcement; significant

impact on staff and service

delivery; sustained national

public / media interest;

significant financial losses

Reputation Little interest Some interest possible but likely 

to be localised and short term

Adverse coverage, probably 

on a one off basis

Significant adverse 

coverage, likely to recur on 

several occasions

Very significant adverse 

coverage, sustained over a 

considerable period.

LIKELIHOOD
1.

Very Low

2. 

Low

3. 

Possible

4. 

Likely

5. 

Almost Certain

<5% 5% - 20% 20%-50% 50%-75% >75%

Has not occurred before or 

has happened rarely.

Although unlikely, there is a 

chance that the risk may 

materialise.

The outcome is in the 

balance, and is almost as 

likely to occur as not

More likely to occur than not 

occur

Significantly more likely to 

occur than not occur

L
ik
e
li
h
o
o
d

5 Significant Major High Severe Severe

4 Moderate Significant Major High Severe

3 Low Moderate Significant Major High

2 Trivial Low Moderate Significant Major

1 Trivial Trivial Low Moderate Significant

1 2 3 4 5

Impact

3




	Agenda
	3a Interactive 3D City Model
	Appendix 1
	Appendix 2

	3b Potential Land Acquisition
	App 1
	App 2

	3c Belfast Zoo Report
	Appendix 1

	4a Belfast City Centre Management
	5a Routes Conference 2017
	7a Corporate Risk Update
	Appendix 1


